RECEIVED

Mar 24 2025

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

G. D. Morgan, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2023-001497

Ronald Carl Cox Appellant,

v.

Michael John Dimagio Respondent.

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

PETTUS | FARNSWORTH, LLC

/s/ Daniel J. Farnsworth, Jr.

Daniel J. Farnsworth, Jr. (South Carolina Bar No. 6922)

211 Pettigru Street (29601)

Post Office Box 8719 (29604)

Greenville, South Carolina

Telephone (864) 250-9119

Facsimile (864) 250-9120

Attorney for the Appellant

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- 1) Was service of process on defendant satisfactorily achieved when Plaintiff followed Defendant's instruction to send legal documents discussed with Defendant over the phone to his attorney?
- 2) Was subsequent Service by Publication satisfactorily achieved when plaintiff's motion for service by publication was filed with the Circuit Court prior to the expiration of the normal period for service, although actually published, all be it with an error, soon after the expiration of that service period, then again for a fourth, fifth and sixth consecutive week?
- 3) Is Plaintiff allowed relief under Rule 60 of the SCRCPP, or the doctrine of Equitable Tolling, for falling short of exacting compliance in the service of process on a civil claim, particularly when there is evidence of defendant actively avoiding the same?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Plaintiff filed the present civil action on May 31st, 2022, concerning his violent assault by Defendant, on June 1st, 2019, after Defendant had followed Plaintiff and his date from a downtown Greenville restaurant, shouting obscenities, insults, and thereafter physically attacking Plaintiff as he respectfully asked him to stop harassing them. (R. pp 24-30)

During the several months that followed, Plaintiff began attempting service by seeking the current residence of Defendant through several sources. After Plaintiff's process servers went to several different addresses unable to find Defendant, Plaintiff resorted to finally to having a skip trace search done by a third party which provided Defendant's most recent address and phone number. (R. pp 45-47)

On September 1st, one of Plaintiff's process servers called and spoke to Defendant, notifying Defendant of legal documents to be delivered to him, and was instructed to send

them to his attorney, who's name Defendant provided. (R. pp 67) However, the day after receiving Plaintiff's Summons and Complaint, Defendant's designee replied by email and suggested that he did not have authority to accept service and would not be representing Defendant in this civil matter (R. pp 94).

Over the next eight days, subsequent calls to Defendant from Plaintiff's process servers were not answered or answered briefly then the call was hung up and abruptly ended by Defendant. Plaintiff's process servers then visited Defendant's residence and knocked on his door, with no answer, although hearing keys being moved inside the residence near the front door, along with a dog barking, causing suspicion that the Defendant was inside his residence and refusing to answer the door. The process servers then spoke with multiple neighbors confirming that Defendant resided at the address and spoke with his employer who confirmed that Defendant worked remotely from home.

On September 9th, 2022, although believing that service was effective pursuant to the instructions of Defendant, and out of an abundance of caution, Plaintiff filed a petition in Greenville County Circuit Court for service by publication, (R. pp 35) which was granted upon a showing of diligent efforts on October 6, 2020, by the Honorable Letisha Verdin (R. pp 17).

The normal one hundred-twenty days for service of process was to run on September 30th, however with the Order timely filed and granted, Plaintiff completed his publication under the Order issued by the Circuit Court, and notice was published in the Greenville News for three consecutive weeks beginning October 27th, continuing the week of November 3rd and through the week of November 10, 2022.

As counsel for Plaintiff was out under a protection order by the Circuit Court, and recovering from what his surgeon called a severe cervical spinal fusion surgery, he was advised that there was an error in the Publication. Several weeks later, upon learning that in

lieu of the Summons, the Court's actual Order of Publication was published, Plaintiff's counsel instructed his staff to re-publish the Summons for another three consecutive weeks, those being December 27th, January 3rd and January 10th, 2023.

Just days after the Plaintiff's second three-weeks of publication of notice of the action Defendant's motion to dismiss for failure to serve process was filed (R. pp 32).

On July 24th, 2023, the Defendant's motion to dismiss was heard by the Honorable G.D. Morgan, Jr., who heard arguments of counsel and received affidavits and other related supporting documents, and ruled for Defendant, granting by order of September 19, 2023, his motion to dismiss for ineffective service of process (R. pp 4). This appeal timely followed.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

An officer's return of process creates the legal presumption of proper service that cannot be impeached by the mere denial of service by the defendant. Delta Apparel, Inc. v. Farina, 406 S.C. 257, 750 S.E.2nd 615 (Ct.App. 2013).

The Court's exercise of personal jurisdiction over a party will not be disturbed on appeal unless wholly unsupported by the evidence or manifestly influenced or controlled by error of law. Ex parte South Carolina Dept. of Revenue 350 S.C. 404, 566 S.E.2d 196 (Ct.App. 2002).

ARGUMENT

Was service of process on defendant satisfactorily achieved when Plaintiff followed Defendant's instruction to send legal documents discussed with Defendant over the phone to his attorney?

As to whether service of process on the defendant in the present case was satisfactorily achieved, the Appellant would submit the following.

Exacting compliance with the rules is not required to effect service of process; rather the Court must inquire whether the plaintiff has sufficiently complied with the rules such that the Court has personal jurisdiction of the defendant and the defendant has notice of the proceedings. Mull v. Ridgeland Realty, LLC, 387 S.C. 479, 693 S.E.2nd 27 (Ct.App. 2010). The rule governing personal services of process serves at least two purposes; it confers personal jurisdiction on the Court and assures the Defendant of reasonable notice of the action. BB&T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006); Bage, LLC v. Southeastern Roofing Co. of Spartanburg, Inc., 373 S.C. 457, 646 S.E.2nd 153 (Ct.App. 2007), rehearing denied, certiorari granted.

The principal object of service of process is to give notice to the defendant of the proceedings against it. Mull v. Ridgeland Realty, LLC, 387 S.C. 479, 693 S.E.2nd 27 (Ct.App. 2010).

In finding service was not perfected, the Court in BB&T v. Taylor 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006), found that the record did not indicate that Debtor (defendant) was aware of process server and his attempts to serve her, process server never saw or spoke to anyone who resided in (defendant's) residence, and no one refused acceptance (before server attached the summons and complaint to debtor's front door)

Here, in the present case, Plaintiff's process server did the first two, making Defendant aware that he was a process server, and speaking to Defendant on the phone at his residence, along with leaving a voice message the following day, that his designee has attempted to refuse acceptance of the process delivered as instructed by the Defendant.

Defendant's counsel actually provided a transcription and recording of the voice message left for the Defendant, referring to the delivery of the Summons and Complaint to the person Defendant designated during their brief phone call the previous day; and the designee's attempt to avoid acceptance of the Summons and Complaint.

Additionally, the Court noted that the Plaintiff in BB&T, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006) was attempting to obtain a default judgment on her (defendant), which is not being sought in the present case, which further distinguishes that case from the present one.

Therefore, here, when Plaintiff's process servers spoke to Defendant twice on the telephone phone, being hung up on both times; then left a voicemail message the following day with Defendant, with no response; then appeared in person at Defendant's address, confirming with four (4) neighbors that the Defendant did reside there; then knocked on Defendant's door and heard keys being handled near the door, along with a dog barking, yet Defendant refused to come to the door; then staying at Defendant's residence for more than thirty (30) minutes to await him leaving his residence, then receiving a text the next day from two of the neighbors that Defendant had ordered groceries delivered which were sitting at his door; the circumstances are clearly distinguished from BB&T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006).

Defendant's production of the voice mail message again supports Plaintiff's position. (R. pp 107) The message left refers to the Process Server's delivery of the Summons and Complaint to the person Defendant had instructed him to sent it to the day before, and that this individual responded that he was not representing the Defendant on this civil action and therefore could not accept service. However, as argued herein, such service was complete upon receipt by Defendants specific designee. Following the Court's analysis in Sterns Bank Nat. Ass'n v. Glenwood Falls, LP, 373 S.C. 331, 644 S.E.2d 793 (Ct.App. 2007), Defendant admits he was aware of a process server contacting him who had legal documents for him and attempts to deliver them to him.

Secondly, Plaintiff's process server's affidavit describes an initial phone call where he spoke with Defendant and notified him he had legal papers for him. And secondly Defendant admits, through production by Defense Counsel, that he received a second call the next day

leaving a voice mail message confirming Defendants instructions to send to his attorney, who claimed to deny acceptance of service of process and again notifying Defendant that legal documents were needing to be delivered to him.

Thirdly, by Defendant's own admissions contained in Defense Counsel's arguments, Defendant did not refuse to accept them, but *actually instructed* Plaintiff's process server to forward them to his attorney, then providing his attorney's name to allow the process served to locate his designee.

Defendant indeed received notice that there were legal documents to be delivered to him and directed process server to forward to his attorney.

Defendant in his own original argument admits he was notified there were legal documents for him, but claims he believed those documents related to a prior criminal matter, which would have been three years ago. This is irrelevant to whether he was notified of a pending legal matter with documents to be delivered to him.

The rules of service do not require an explanation of the nature of the legal process being served, nor does a Defendant get to review documents he's accepted or directed to be forwarded to his attorney, and then decide if he wants to accept them.

Defendant's counsel actually provided a transcription and recording of the voice message left for the Defendant, referring to the delivery of the Summons and Complaint to the person Defendant designated during their brief phone call the previous day; and the designee's attempt to avoid acceptance of the Summons and Complaint.

Additionally, the Court noted that the Plaintiff in BB&T was attempting to obtain a default judgment on her (defendant), which is not being sought in the present case, which further distinguishes that case from the present one.

Therefore, here, when Plaintiff's process servers spoke to Defendant twice on the telephone phone, being hung up on both times; then left a voicemail message the following

day with Defendant, with no response; then appeared in person at Defendant's address, confirming with four (4) neighbors that the Defendant did reside there; then knocked on Defendant's door and heard keys being handled near the door, along with a dog barking, yet Defendant refused to come to the door; then staying at Defendant's residence for more than thirty (30) minutes to await him leaving his residence, then receiving a text the next day from two of the neighbors that Defendant had ordered groceries delivered which were sitting at his door; the circumstances are clearly distinguished from BB&T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006).

The rules of service do not require an explanation of the nature of the legal process being served, nor does a Defendant get to review documents he's accepted or directed to be forwarded to his attorney, and then decide if he wants to accept them. Whether Defendant Dimaggio thought the legal papers Mr. Evatt referenced during his phone call with him were about a criminal matter, as he now claims, is irrelevant. Defendant Dimaggio expressly directed legal papers to be sent to his attorney, to whom they were the same day delivered. Service should be considered complete. Dimaggio's attorney, whose name he provided the process server, cannot refuse service when the party defendant has directed it to be received by that agent. Defendants are not given the opportunity to see what is being served and decide if he wishes to decline acceptance, particularly when those legal papers were delivered where defendant directed them to be sent.

The process server is not required to ram the documents down a defendant's throat and personal service of process "should not be a game of wiles and tricks." 62B Am.Jur.2d Process § 190 (2005). However, there must be something more than a mere suspicion of a defendant's refusal to accept the summons and complaint before we are willing to find a defendant was sufficiently served with process by a means other than strict compliance with Rule 4(d)(1), SCRC. BB& T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. at 555, 633 S.E.2d at 504-505. Service of

Process in South Carolina (SCBar) (2021 Ed. Miscellaneous Rules I. - B)

As exacting compliance with the rules is not required to effect service of process; here the Court was provided with a detailed description of the diligent efforts expended by Plaintiff and his staff in attempting service on the Defendant, which supported an Order of Service by Production, and allowed Plaintiff to exercise an abundance of caution by having the Defendant served again a second, and third time.

As the Court has stated, exacting compliance with the rules is not required to effect service of process; rather, a Court must inquire whether the Plaintiff has sufficiently complied with the rules such that the Court has personal jurisdiction of the defendant and the defendant has notice of the proceedings. BB&T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006).

As our Supreme Court noted in BB&T v. Taylor, what constitutes delivery of a copy of the summons and complaint to the individual personally where the process server had repeatedly attempted to serve process and during the final attempt believed the individual was inside the residence but never saw or communicated with the individual.

The court in BB&T found the service was not proper, noting there was no evidence in the record to indicate the defendant was even aware of the process server and his attempt to serve her. The court held defendant was not properly served because the process server never saw or spoke to anyone who resided in defendant's residence, nor did anyone refuse acceptance before the process server attached the summons and complaint to defendant's front door. The court added:

The process server is not required to ram the documents down a defendant's throat and personal service of process "should not be a game of wiles and tricks." 62B Am.Jur.2d Process § 190 (2005). However, there must be something more than a mere suspicion of a defendant's refusal to accept the summons and complaint before we are willing to find a defendant was sufficiently served with process by a means other than strict compliance with

Rule 4(d)(1), SCRCP. BB& T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. at 555, 633 S.E.2d at 504-505. Service of Process in South Carolina (SCBar) (2021 Ed. Miscellaneous Rules I. - B)

Further, instructions to have a Summons and Complaint delivered to another third party by a Defendant has been recognized as effecting proper service by our Courts for over thirty-five (35) years. In Humphries v. Spitz (S.C. App 1985) 284 SC 521, 327 SE2d 370, the Court obtained jurisdiction over a Defendant where the Summons and Complaint were given by the process server to the Defendant's sister (who had been authorized by Defendant to receive his mail), and was actually given by that sister to another of Defendant's sisters, who delivered it to him.

Here, Defendant Dimaggio explicitly directed and instructed Plaintiff's process server to email the legal papers to his attorney, even identifying his attorney by name. The fact that this agent was not yet hired, nor would be chosen to defend this civil action, has no bearing on whether the process server following Defendant's instructions was effective provided Defendant with reasonable notice of the action pending and established personal jurisdiction to the Court.

To conclude differently would allow Defendants to send process to his attorney, then decide together whether to honor his direct instructions to deliver a copy of the documents where Defendant instructed.

Authorizing a third party, particularly one's attorney, to accept legal documents known to being delivered, is proper service when those instructions are followed. Our Supreme Court has held that apparent authority suffices for an agent to accept service of process on behalf of the principal, and it is established based on manifestations by the principal, not the agent. Roberson v. Southern Finance of South Carolina (S.C. 2005) 365 S.C. 6, 615 S.E.2d 112.

This differs significantly from one a contacting another party's known counsel and asking if that attorney would accept service. Typically, that attorney would need to contact his client and get authority to accept service on their client's behalf. Here – client was contacted first by process server and instructed that the legal process be sent to his attorney. Service was effective and proper once those instructions were followed.

Rule 4(d)(1) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure provides that service of process on an individual is effective *by delivering a copy to an agent authorized by appointment or my law to receive service of process*. The Courts must look to the circumstances surrounding he relationship and find authority which is either *express* or implied from the type of relationship between the defendant and the alleged agent. Evidence that the defendant intended to confer such authority is binding. Hamilton v. Davis, 300 SC 411, 389 SE2d 297 (Ct.App.1990).

Here, unlike the parties in BB&T, Plaintiff's process servers both spoke to Defendant over the phone at his residence and a subsequent message was left for Defendant the next day indicating that legal documents were delivered to his designee as instructed, which were being (ineffectively) refused, and that additional efforts were being made. Both that follow up message and the process server's subsequent in person attempt at Defendant's resident were ignored, while evidence of Defendant being at home, working remotely from home, and sounds of someone home but refusing to answer the door were presented to the Court. Subsequent efforts to accomplish Service by Publication, being done out of an abundance of caution, although necessitating some additional time, also provided reasonable notice of the pending litigation.

Further, as set out in Hamilton v. Davis, 300 SC 411, 389 SE2d 29 (Ct.App. 1990), there is evidence, both direct and circumstantial, that the Defendant conferred authority on his

agent or designee, by instructing Plaintiff's process server to send the Summons and Complaint to his attorney, identified and named by Plaintiff.

Such evidence would include affidavit testimony (R. pp 85), that Mr. Steve Evatt called and spoke with Defendant on September 1st, 2022, notifying him that he had legal papers for him; that it was Plaintiff counsel's understanding that Mr. Evatt was told by Defendant to send those documents to Austin McDaniel, identified by Defendant as his attorney; transcription and an audio recording of a voice mail message left the next day by Mr. Evatt on Defendant's phone line referencing and confirming Defendant's instruction to have said legal documents delivered to his agent and attorney (along with said agent's reply attempting to decline acceptance of service as directly authorized by Defendant the day before) (R. pp 85).

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