RECEIVED

Mar 24 2025

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

G. D. Morgan, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2023-001497

Ronald Carl Cox Appellant

v.

Michael John Dimaggio Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

MOORHEAD LeFEVRE PA

/s/ J. Kirkman Moorhead

J. Kirkman Moorhead (South Carolina Bar No. 7039)

2203 North Main Street

Anderson, South Carolina

29621 Telephone (864) 225-
9155

Facsimile (864) 225-9151

Attorney for the Respondent

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

ARGUMENT

The Appellant failed to properly commence its civil action against the Respondent pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §15-3-20 and SCRCivP 3(a) where Appellant timely filed its Summons and Complaint but attempted service (1) only of the Summons (2) via email (3) on Respondent’s attorney in a separate *criminal* matter, who promptly advised he did not have authority to accept service in the civil matter.

“Section 15–3–20 of the South Carolina Code governs the commencement of actions. In 2002, the General Assembly amended the statute to its current form, and it now provides:

(A) Civil actions may only be commenced within the periods prescribed in this title after the cause of action has accrued, except when, in special cases, a different limitation is prescribed by statute.

(B) A civil action is commenced when the summons and complaint are filed with the clerk of court if actual service is accomplished within one hundred twenty days after filing. S.C.Code Ann. § 15–3–20 (2005).

In 2004, in direct response to the legislative change in section 15–3–20(B), this Court amended Rule 3(a) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure to read as follows:

(a) Commencement of civil action. A civil action is commenced when the summons and complaint are filed with the clerk of court if:

(1) the summons and complaint are served within the statute of limitations in any manner prescribed by law; or

(2) if not served within the statute of limitations, actual service must be accomplished not later than one hundred twenty days after filing.

As stated in the official notes to the rule, [the South Carolina Supreme] Court amended Rule 3, SCRCP in 2004 “to reflect the legislative intent expressed in § 15–3–20 as amended

by 2002 S.C. Act No. 281, § 1.”

Mims v. Babcock Ctr., Inc., 399 S.C. 341, 732 S.E.2d 395 (S.C. 2012)

The legislative intent in amending §15–3–20(B) in 2002 was to provide a safety net for cases where filing of the summons and complaint occurs near the end of the statute of limitations and service is made after the limitations period has run. The statute and the rule, read together, provide that (1) an action is commenced upon filing the summons and complaint, if service is made within the statute of limitations, and (2) if filing but not service is accomplished within the statute of limitations, then service must be made within 120 days of filing. *Id.*

The Appellant filed the Summons and Complaint in this matter on May 31, 2022, alleging Assault and Battery, Negligence and Gross Negligence against the Respondent for an incident occurring June 1, 2019. COMPLAINT

The statute of limitations for Assault and Battery and for Negligence and Gross Negligence in South Carolina is three years. S.C. Code Ann §§ 15-3-530(5), 15-3-535.

Therefore the Statute of Limitations for all causes of action alleged by the Appellant expired on June 2, 2022, just two days after filing by the Appellant. Thereafter, pursuant to §15-3-20 and Rule 3 S.C.R.Civ.P. the Summons and Complaint were required to be served upon the Respondent within 120 days of filing or, in this case, on or before September 28, 2022. Because the Summons and Complaint was filed within the Statute of Limitations, the question for the Court is whether the respondent was ever properly served on or before September 28, 2022.

The Appellant failed to properly serve the Respondent by emailing the Summons to the respondent’s attorney for matters of a criminal nature because the attorney was not authorized to accept service of matters of a civil nature.

There are no provisions in South Carolina Rules or Law which allow emailing to serve as proper service for an initial Summons and Complaint in the absence of voluntary acceptance of service or appearance by a Defendant. Therefore emailing of the Summons to the criminal attorney of the Respondent is insufficient to effect service. This is especially so when the criminal attorney promptly notifies that party attempting service that he is not authorized to accept service. This attempt by the Appellant at service is made further insufficient because the Appellant emailed *only the Summons*.

The plaintiff has the burden to establish that the court has personal jurisdiction over the defendant. *Jensen v. Doe*, 292 S.C. 592, 358 S.E.2d 148 (Ct.App.1987). The plaintiff need only show compliance with the rules. *Roche v. Young Bros., Inc., of Florence*, 318 S.C. 207, 456 S.E.2d 897 (1995). When the civil rules on service are followed, there is a presumption of proper service. *Id.* Rule 4, S.C.R.Civ.P. serves at least two purposes. It confers personal jurisdiction on the court and assures the defendant of reasonable notice of the action. *Id.* Exacting compliance with the rules is not required to effect service of process. Rather, inquiry must be made as to whether the plaintiff has sufficiently complied with the rules such that the court has personal jurisdiction of the defendant and the defendant has notice of the proceedings. *Id.*

Moore v. Simpson, 322 S.C. 518, 473 S.E.2d 64 (S.C. App. 1996)

Rule 4 S.C.R.Civ.P. governs the manner of service of the initial pleadings.

RULE 4. Process

...

(d) Summons: Personal Service. The summons and complaint must be served together. The plaintiff shall furnish the person making service with such copies as are necessary. Voluntary appearance by defendant is equivalent to personal service; and written notice of appearance by a party or his attorney shall be effective

upon mailing, or may be served as provided in this rule. Service shall be made as follows:

(d)(1) Individuals. Upon an individual other than a minor under the age of 14 years or an incompetent person, by delivering a copy of the summons and complaint to him personally or by leaving copies thereof at his dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein, or by delivering a copy to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process.

...

"(j) Acceptance of Service. No other proof of service shall be required when acceptance of service is acknowledged in writing and signed by the person served or his attorney, and delivered to the person making service. The acknowledgement shall state the place and date service is accepted." S.C. R. Civ. P. 4 Process (South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure (2022 Edition))

S.C. R. Civ. P. 4 Process (South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure (2022 Edition))

SCRCP 4(d)(1), like its federal counterpart, Rule 4(d)(1) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, provides for service upon an agent only if authorized by appointment or by law. *Hamilton v. Davis*, 300 S.C. 411, 389 S.E.2d 297 (Ct.App.1990). Actual appointment for the specific purpose of receiving process normally is expected and the mere fact a person may be considered to act as defendant's agent for some purpose does not necessarily mean that the person has authority to receive process. *Id.* The courts must look to the circumstances surrounding the relationship and find authority which is either express or implied from the type of relationship between the defendant and the alleged agent. *Id.* Claims by one to possess authority to receive process or actual acceptance of process by an alleged agent will not necessarily bind the defendant. Rather, there must be evidence the defendant intended to confer such authority. *Id.* This

provision was intended to cover the situations where an individual *actually appoints an agent* for the purpose of receiving service.

Moore v. Simpson, 322 S.C. 518, 473 S.E.2d 64 (S.C. App. 1996)(*emphasis added*).

There is no evidence that the Respondent's criminal Attorney was authorized to accept service for the Respondent. To the contrary, the evidence is that Respondent believed that Appellant's process server had contacted him about a matter involving the victim's compensation fund, which is a matter that Respondent's criminal attorney may have handled. (R. pp. 87-88).

At argument, Appellant's counsel, advises that his process server called the Respondent and explained that he had a Summons and Complaint for delivery to him. (P. 45, Paragraph 1st full). The affidavit of Respondent advises that Appellant's process server represented he was with the "victims' fund". (R. pp. 87-88). Respondent denies that Appellant's process server ever explained that he had a civil summons and complaint to serve upon him, therefore he could not have been avoiding service of which he was unaware. (R. pp. 87-88). In contrast the sworn representations of Appellant's counsel, the affidavit of Appellants process server advised that he told the Respondent that he had "legal papers" for him and makes no mention of a Summons and Complaint. (R. pp. 85-86). Besides the self-serving arguments of Appellant's counsel during argument, there is no evidence in the record that the Respondent was ever told of a Summons and Complaint by the Appellant.

The idea that the Respondent did not know that the initial contact by the Appellant was related to a civil matter was reinforced subsequent to the attempts of the Appellant to serve process through the criminal attorney by a voicemail left by the Appellant's process server on the voicemail of the Respondent. (R. p. 8; R. p. 107)

The voicemail, verbatim, is as follows:

“Yes, Mr. Dimaggio, this is Steve, we spoke yesterday. Uh, you, uh, you gave me your attorney’s information however your attorney does not, or he says he is not your attorney, he doesn’t rep you, represent you in any matter. Uh, I need you to call me back as soon as possible or I’ll just, ah, have to go up and talk to your, your, your employer or something, so, um I’d like to get this taken care of. This has nothing to do with, um, with uh, criminal charges. So, thank you.”

This voicemail helps to establish several points. First is that Appellant’s process server was promptly notified by the criminal attorney that he could not accept service. Second, Appellant’s process server advises his contact “this has nothing to do with...criminal charges.” A logical reason for him to explain this is that Appellant’s process server understood that Respondent had reason to believe that Appellant’s previous call to Respondent concerned criminal matters. This lends further credence to Respondent’s representation in his affidavit that he believed that the call from Appellant’s process server involved a criminal matter. (R. pp. 87-88). Therefore Respondent would not have been on notice of a civil complaint against him.

Given that this series of event occurred September 1st and 2d, the conclusion that any referral of the Appellant’s process server by the Respondent to Respondent’s criminal attorney was not to accept service of a Summons and Complaint, but was because Respondent genuinely believed that Appellant’s contact with him concerned a criminal matter. (R. pp. 8, 87-88, 107). The Respondent cannot seek to avoid what he does not understand to exist.

The Appellant has likewise provided no proof that the Respondent’s criminal attorney made a voluntary acceptance.

“No other proof of service shall be required when acceptance of service is acknowledged in writing and signed by the person served or his attorney, and delivered to the person making service” SCRCivP Rule 4(j). No such writing was

delivered or alleged to have been delivered in this case.

Importantly, even if Respondent's criminal attorney was a proper agent for service as a result of authority to accept service, the service by the Respondent would still have been insufficient because it failed to include the Complaint.

Pursuant to Rule 4 S.C.R.Civ.P. "[t]he summons and complaint must be served together. The plaintiff shall furnish the person making service with such copies as are necessary."

The filed Certificate of Service pertaining to Appellant's attempts to serve the Respondent's criminal attorney relates that "[t]he Undersigned certifies that a copy of the Summons was served...". (R. p. 67) The Certificate of service makes no mention of the Complaint. Even the first Motion for publication relates that the Respondent "should be served by publication due to the failure of reasonable attempts to serve the Summons on the [Respondent]." (R. pp. 35-36).

The Appellant has failed to produce any evidence that the Respondent's criminal attorney had express authority to accept service of process in a civil case. A factual issue existed as to whether the Respondent indicated that Respondent's criminal attorney was authorized to accept service. The record is devoid of any written acceptance of service by Respondent's criminal attorney.

The lower Court resolved this factual issue against the Appellants, finding that the Respondent's criminal attorney did not accept service of the Civil Summons and Complaint nor was designated as the agent for the Respondent to accept the Civil Summons and Complaint. (R. pp. 4-13). Because such a finding is supported by the evidence of record, it is binding on this court. There simply is no evidence Respondent intended to confer authority, either express or implied, upon the Respondent's criminal attorney to accept service of process. Because Appellants failed to show compliance with the rules by serving an agent authorized to accept service,

the Order dismissing the Appellants Complaint for failing to properly commence the action should be affirmed.

Moore v. Simpson, 322 S.C. 518, 473 S.E.2d 64 (S.C. App. 1996)

The Appellants further failed to comply with the Rules for service by attempting service via email and by failing to include a copy of the Complaint, in compliance with Rule 4(d) S.C.R.Civ.P.

Last, the Respondent has produced no written document signed by an agent noting the date and time of service and expressly accepting service of the Summons and Complaint, therefore there is no evidence of records of acceptance of service pursuant to Rule 4(j) S.C.R.Civ.P.

For the above reasons, this Court should find that there is evidence in the record to support the decision of the lower Court, that therefore the lower Court did not abuse its discretion and the dismissal of the Appellants complaint should be affirmed.

The Appellant failed to properly commence its civil action against the Respondent by publishing the Summons in a timely manner via publication within the time period established by pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §15-3-20 and SCRCivP 3(a).

The Appellant concedes in its brief that ALL attempts at service by publication in this case took place only after the expiration of the 120 day time period allowed for service of a Summons and Complaint by SCRCivP 3(a). (Appellant's Initial Brief, Statement of the Case p. 2). The Appellant further argues that publication of the *Order of Publication* instead of the Summons is sufficient, and even superior, notice of the existence of a civil action against the Respondent. Appellant's Initial Brief, p. 21 ll. 7-18). The Appellant also argues that he has a meritorious civil claim and good faith efforts to serve the Respondent by publication should relieve the Appellant of the errors that they made during attempts at service by publication. (Appellant's Initial

Brief p. 23, ll. 4-9).

The Appellant filed a Motion for Publication in this matter on September 9, 2022. (R. pp. 35-36). That Motion did not include affidavits required by §15-9-710 and no action was taken on the Motion by the Court. On September 30, 2022 a second Motion for Publication, this one captioned a “Petition” was filed with the Court by the Appellant. (R. pp. 37-38). September 30, 2022 was the 122d day after filing of the Summons and Complaint, and is two days after the limitations on time for service of process established by §15-2-30 and Rule 3 SCRCivP. The Court granted the Appellant authority to serve the Respondent by Publication in its *Order for Publication* dated October 6, 2022. (R. pp. 17-18). The Appellant then erroneously caused to be published the *Order for Publication* instead of the Summons, as is required by §15-9-740. (R. p. 59 ll. 19-24, p. 84, Appellants Initial Brief, Statement of the Case p.2). Apparently recognizing that the incorrect document was published, the Appellant eventually caused the Summons to be published over the course of three week, with the last day of publication on January 10, 2023. January 10, 2023 was the 224th day after filing of the Summons and Complaint. (R. p. 46, l. 25 to p. 47, l. 6; R. p. 47, ll. 20-22, R. P.90, Paragraph 4).

The Appellant’s contention that the publication of the *Order of Publication* should constitute sufficient notice to the Respondent that he was required to answer the Appellant’s Complaint is without merit.

The Rules allow for service by publication,

RULE 4. Process

...

(d) Summons: Personal Service.

...

Service shall be made as follows:

(d)(1) Individuals.

...

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